Olesya Fesenko

SPORT TOURISM AS A NEW DIMENSION IN INNOVATION IN RUSSIA



Hannover 2014

Olesya Fesenko

Supervisor: L.P. Kurakov

Sport tourism as a new dimension in innovation in Russia

Sonderdruck aus
Hannoversches Jahrbuch
Band 3, 2014

Serie: Social science

Unter Förderungen der Europäischen Akademie der Naturwissenschaften e.V.

Sport tourism as a new dimension in innovation in Russia

Abstract

Historically, tourism is dependent on historical, cultural, and natural heritage. For countries like Italy, the main attractions are its symbolic historical heritage, political, architectural, and cultural features, while countries in East Africa like Kenya depend purely on cultural and natural attractions. As all nations, bar the degree of variance, seeks to market themselves as tourist destinations, the ripe industry definitely calls for creativity and ambition to enjoy any sizeable share. Russia seeks to combine history and modern ways of marketing its country. Sochi in Russia provides the tip of this paradigm that does not kill other attractions, but rather helps to inject much-needed extra dimension for success. Sochi is the flagship of an ongoing scheme to use sport tourism as the key ingredient to the overall marketability of Russian federation as a tourist destination. This paper develops this paradigm on four main fronts. Firstly, after the Sochi 2014 Olympic Games in February, Sochi is already on the world map. The publicity gained on its architectural endowment, climatic heritage, beaches, and other attractions is worldwide. Secondly, it is a start of a long line of ambitious sporting events, later this year; Sochi is destined to host formula one F1 grand prix, the FIFA world cup is lined up in 2018 among other major and historically rich sporting events notably the Olympic, the world cup and the world athletic championships. Russia hopes to inform the world of its vast attraction sites and products, and to create some notable sport products like the recently constructed Sochi infrastructure, for example, Kaliningrad stadium. Lastly, the paper gives a look at the revenues, publicity to the world as reasons to visit Russia and to identify with it. The paper seeks to gel sporting events with history, passion, and emotions, capable of creating a euphoria lasting a lifetime and possibly passing over to future generations.

By looking at the Sochi events and the changes brought to Russia, the study provides a forum for analyzing other countries and events that

took place in them notably, major heritage sporting events targeted by the Russian federation including the FIFA world cup, the Winter Olympics, the athletic championships and one off events like the marathon, FI and others. The comparative studies will help determine if it is plausible to view Sports as a new and better form of tourism and revenue source. It will also help determine if the renovation costs in host countries are worth the income obtained after the events and in the long run. The study will also look into the changes that were made in Sochi to allow the events to take place and their significance.

The paper draws from various theoretical and epistemological backgrounds and perspectives to develop insights into how sport tourism emerges as a potential innovative dimension for future tourism and development policy agenda and frameworks. In this respect, the discussion will focus on two main themes of sports tourism: socialcultural significance and business significance.

Table of Contents

Abstract	2
Chapter I. Sport tourism in Sochi	
as the new innovational direction	5
1.1 Introduction	5
1.2 Background of the study	5
1.3 Research questions	6
1.4 Case study	7
Chapter II. Literature review	10
Chapter III. Methodology	12
3.1 Sample analyzed	12
3.1.1 Berlin Germany 2009	13
3.1.2 South Africa 2010 World cup	13
3.1.3 Daegu Korea 2011	14
3.1.4 London Olympics 2012	14
3.1.5 IAAF sports in Moscow 2013	15
Chapter IV. Results	16
4.1 Cultural products	16
4.2 Publicity	16
4.3 Collected revenues	16
Chapter V. Summary	17
Poforoncos	10

Chapter I. Sport tourism in Sochi as the new innovational direction

1.1 Introduction

Sport tourism is a term that refers to visitors going to a place in their country or outside their country to watch sports events. Gammon and Ramshaw (2013) define sports tourism and categorizes the definition into hard and soft definitions. The soft definition captures the sports tourist who travels for leisure or recreational sports such as hiking and kayaking. The harder definition captures the number of participants of the competitive events. Some of the major sport attractants include FIFA World Cup, F1 Grand Prix, Olympic Games, rugby sevens among others.

According to Gammon and Ramshaw (2013), sports museums, sporting fields, sports hall of fame and award ceremonies, and themed events past or present for active and past sporting individuals make up the bulk of what is sports tourism. For example, the world cup football matches attract fans both from the hosting nation and from outside the nation. Olympic Games attract tourists from other nations either as participants and/or as leisure seekers (Weed, 2008). Thus, sports tourism depicts the notion of visiting somewhere due to sporting activities. Each city that hosts Olympic events receives an immense number of tourists and visitors before, during, and after the event. This is what makes sports tourism a future for tourism.

Huggins (2013) visualizes a shifting ground for natural tourist attractions, notably, culture, geography, climate, animals, and others. Factors like globalization, global warming, terrorism and scientific, architectural, technological, and social cultural changes make every aspect of humanity dynamic, tourism included.

1.2 Background of the study

The need for this study stems from the recently concluded Sochi Olympics. The social media generated before, during and after the event was enormous (Philopov 2014). It ranged from positive to negative and addressed different aspects of the event including its preparation,

amenities and other concerns, some justifiable while other were not (Arnold 2014). Some of these questions were answered in the preliminary research. Russia is pursuing a shift towards making sports as an antenna to future developments in the tourism sector. Russia seeks to gauge the world understanding of its geopolitical, social cultural and economic heritage. In the wake of the passions (Mansfield 2007), the emotional nostalgia (Gordon 2013), and Weed's (2005) futuristic methodologies, the stage of the Olympics and other sporting events is a ripe arena to capture world attention.

Although studies suggest that hosting world sporting events brings more pain than joy (the hosting nation paradox) (Mehrotra 2011; Rose & Spiegel 2011), sporting events can still be termed as competitively bid. Dull events like the winter Olympics and other winter events have recently received a mild lull interest. The frenzy of hosting such events lies in the sporting history of the events and the ecstasy that goes with them (Gordon 2013). To tap into the history of the sporting events to create a nostalgic feel of the host nation or city, is the new symbol of Russian federation as a method of making the country feel beyond post-soviet Russia, but also a proud Russian heritage. This informs this study and hence the need for an in-depth understanding of the intricate change of heart from the Russian policy development on tourism.

1.3 Research questions

This research seeks to answer the following questions regarding Sochi sport tourism and the future of sport tourism In Russia. Many questions have and will be answered on the topic notably:

- Can Sports be considered a competitive form of tourism?
- Are the benefits realized worth the trouble involved in hosting such events?
- What are the overall effects to justify Sports as a good undertaking?
- What are the benefits, challenges, disadvantages of hosting such events?
- What does the future of tourism hold for countries seeking to market their country as a tourist destination?

- Ultimately, the main questions to be answered in this debate are:
- What is the significance of Sochi Olympics to Russia and Sochi as a host?
- Is sports tourism the new paradigm to tourism marketability and policy direction?
- Is 'Sochi sports tourism' the latest novel innovation to tourism?

1.4 Case study

The build up towards the 2014 winter Olympics saw various candidates bidding to host the event. According to Hudson (2003), hosting the Olympic is a prestigious fete that entices many countries to seek the host status. Hudson (2003) further indicates that events such as the Olympic, the Super Bowl, and the World Cup are hallmark or mega events (p. 8), implying that hosting any of them brings to a country considerable benefits. Barabanova (2013) justifies the eventual decision to allow Russia to host the 2014 winter Olympics based on the country attributes that position it as the most suitable host. In this respect, it is important to understand various characteristics of Russia and Sochi in particular that makes the move towards sports a feasible strategy. Golubchikov and Slepukhina (2014) argue that Russia aimed to take advantage of the many benefits that accrue to the host countries of the sporting mega events.

Sochi, a Russian city in Krasnodar Krai has over 400,000 inhabitants from various national and cultural backgrounds (USSA Foundation, n. d). It is Russia's most famous resort region stretching 147 km along the Black Sea coast and boasting of modern amenities coupled with a unique environment and a transportation system developed that is convenient and suitable for any Winter Olympic event (Ibid). As a result, the city receives over two million visitors annually. In Russia, the infrastructure of Sochi is among the most advanced a factor attributable to the efforts put forth in the preparation for 2014 Sochi games (Arnold, 2014). Tourists visit for leisure and health boosting the economy of the city. The 2014 games lead to reviewing and improving the highways, railways, and airports to modern standards to ease movement across Sochi (Barabanova 2013).

Sochi holds Nordic and Alpine events at RozaKhutor, a ski resort, since

it experiences a subtropical climate unlike most parts of Russia (Philipov 2014). In 2014, Sochi hosted XI Paralympic Winter Games and XXII Olympic Winter Games. Sochi also expects to host the Russian Formula 1 Grand Prix from the year 2014 at least to the year 2020 (Barabanova 2013). However, this will only happen when the circuit is ready. Sochi will also house the 2018 FIFA World Cup as it forms one of the host cities (Ibid). Transport was developed to allow easier transit of participants, 30-minute intervals, between the events held separately in Sochi (ice events) the coastal town and Krasnaya Polyana Mountains (Mountain sports) (BOA 2014).

The Games were planned in two clusters: a coastal one for ice sports in Sochi, and a mountain venue located in the Krasnaya Polyana Mountains (State News Service, SNS, 2014). This resulted in it being one of the tightest Games ever, with about 30 minutes travel time from the coastal to mountain venues (Ibid). The Sochi Olympic Park sits along the expanse Black Sea coast of the Imeretinskaya Valley and houses all ice venues. The ice events took place in the different venues including the Maly Ice Palace, Sochi Olympic Skating Centre, the Olympic Oval, the Olympic Curling Centre, the Bolshoi Ice Palace, the Central Stadium among others, all rebuilt for the games in 2014 (Ibid). The compact structure of the park offers an average 6km distance between the coastal venues and the Olympic village (BOA 2014). Sports on skiing and sliding were housed in the KrasnayaPolyana mountain cluster, which also has a compact structure (Ibid). This is because there is a distance of only 4km between the venues and the mountain sub community (Ibid).

The Sochi XXII Olympic Winter Games saw six new participants in the games, which include Paraguay, Zimbabwe, Tonga, Malta, Timor Leste and Togo. Forty percent were female members of over 2800 athletes. To show the intensity of visitors, tickets over 1.1 million were sold while media coverage reached almost 4.1 billion viewers through broadcasts on digital and television platforms (PWC.ru 2014). This can also be seen by the 7.7million fans on Facebook that also captures followers numbering of over 2.2 million on all platforms (Ibid). Sochi brought in many records such as the event carried out the largest dope detection campaign in the Olympic Winter Games history. Sochi also

saw the introduction of twelve new events which are; the ski half-pipe, ski slopestyle and snowboard, biathlon mixed relay, luge relay, team figure skating, snowboard parallel slalom and the women's ski jumping (SNS 2014). These events saw the award to 15 disciplines of over ninety-eight titles and winning of medals by athletes from National Olympic Committees amounting to 26. They leave a legacy and an avenue for future developments in the new sporting activities.

Members of the IOC (International Olympic Committee) voted for Sochi in July as well as PyeongChang (Republic of Korea) and Salzburg (Austria) out of the seven countries that had applied (Barabanova 2013). The event wound up with memorable moments such as the crowning of Einar Bjorndalene and Marit Bjorgen, both Norwegian athletes, who were the athletes with the most medals in the Sochi Olympic Winter Games for male and female categories respectively.

Chapter II. Literature review

Sports, tourism, and sports tourism are common human activities throughout history. Even in the mythical setting under which today's heritage, whose pillar tourism is anchored on, the theater for sports cannot be understated (Furrer, 2002). Furrer (2002) further epitomizes the need for sustainable hosting of a sporting event, which was further developed to mean that although the event may only last a month, the events preceding and proceeding it have a long-run effect spanning to 10 years or more (Mehrotra, 2011). As PWC notes (as the official professional partner for Sochi 2014 winter Olympics), hosting sporting events of such magnitude require sustainability, affordability, pleasure and leisure and efficiency in balance of such important aspects of sporting events.

Sports are tourism by definition. Rarely are sporting events one sided. The prospect of a new ground as potential host to a major sporting event is a common phenomena prompting the need for a constant change of venue for neutrality and fair play. Sporting events bring together the finest in every corner of the region or earth, to compete for the ultimate championship. This means that the need to travel to the event is inevitable. Sporting events also require that any competition should be based on the standard (Knott & Fyall 2011). Sometimes, similar conditions set the standards implying that the competitors have to satisfy the standards regardless of their origin. It brings the need to recognize that some records are seasonal and widely acknowledged. For example, the clay court for tennis is perhaps one of the toughest places to pay in or the summer of the Wimbledon. These are subjective definitions of challenges to the standard mark. The need to ensure that all contenders compete in the same venue under similar conditions prompts for the need to travel. Spectators who do enjoy the home advantage have no option but to travel and cheer their home fans.

The rich sporting history is a fully-fledged multibillion-dollar industry (Fyall & Shipway 2012). For example, the history of football, athletics, and Olympics generates employment for hundreds of thousands annually both employing people directly or directly in business, service industry and such events (Ibid). Companies like Nike and Adidas are multinationals specializing in sporting goods (Koba 2013). In the wake

of such a deep understanding of global impact of sport, it is evident that there is a need to generate a policy directive towards this lucrative business.

Chapter III. Methodology

This literature reviews borrows from the theoretical underpinnings and perspectives towards sports, tourism and sports tourism. A case study analysis based on the theoretical framework developed as an analysis based on the interpretative qualitative research as a potential future theory (Brett & Weed, 2007; Weed, 2005; Gibson, 2006). The case study analysis is in line with supportive literature on other sporting events based on the research questions. The interpretation, as used in Gordon (2013) to set up the success of the interpretive model of analyzing sports tourism. This develops from the need to understand tourism in diverse cultural, political and economic lens hence the need to use diverse samples for the research.

The methodology applied in the analysis of the case study (Sochi Sports) involves a comparison of the chosen events. Using the data projected from the individual events, a comparative study is the apt choice to analyze the impacts of sports on host nations. This is because it provides the rough estimates of statistics about the event in terms of publicity, spectators, number of visitors before and after the event, changes in such statistics after the event, and revenues obtained that will enable in coming up with the right conclusive evidence of Sports as a new tourism venture.

3.1 Sample analyzed

Comparative study of the sample follows recent sports events and their impact on the host cities. The concept of follow is informed by the fact that such events leave a long lasting impression on all aspects of humanity.

In the study, national sporting events in different countries notably, the London 2012 Olympics, Daegu 2011 championships, Berlin championships in 2009, world cup 2010 in south Africa and 2013 IAAF championship in Moscow, their impacts analyzed under the results heading. They will give an opportunity of viewing sporting activities and their overall effect of hosting them to the country or region hosting them. The choice for the cities is based on their magnitude in comparison to the Sochi Olympics and how they compare. This sample

is informed by the current trend of hosting top sporting events in the Sochi calendar, notably the Formula 1 and the FIFA world cup in 2018. This means the target of top sporting events and the impact they leave to the host is invaluable to this study.

3.1.1 Berlin Germany 2009

The 2009 athletics held between15th –23rd of August 2009, stemmed the sporting prowess of the Germans in sports preparations and management. The most events took place in the Olympic stadium; built in 1972 summer Olympics, while the race walks and marathon events began and ended at the Brandenburg Gate: another landmark built for sporting purposes. Its organizers budgeted €49.8 million to hold the event, but actually used higher than that figure. The events were positive for Berlin as over 400, 000 tickets were sold, with visitors estimated to spend €120 million. Spectators exceeded 5m with natural crowd pullers 100m finals men pulling almost 10 million viewers. Notable points of reference to the Sochi 2014 event include the fact that most of the infrastructures used during the event were inherited from past sporting activities. This is what Rose and Spiegel (2011) called the Olympic effect.

According to stadia management board in Germany, past events infrastructure already have a historical significance, for example, the Signal Iduna Park (Home to football team Borussia Dortmund) that goes with the hosting of past events. The Olympic stadium and the Hertha Berlin football stadium present in 1936 Olympics still hold significance and economic relevance to the Germans. According to Levy and Burger (2013), host countries and cities dwell on the surge of business that comes with the euphoric climate of the event, though they notice that a sharp plummet of the business affects existent business. To individual people and businesses, Berlin did not capture much, but to the city as tourist destination and the sporting euphoria left by the event, reverberates for long as an economic or historical reference.

3.1.2 South Africa 2010 World cup

The World cup in South Africa is important as it led to the renovation of ten stadia hosting the games with the final game played at Soccer City

Stadium in Johannesburg. Over 3,175,000 translating to over 48, 000 attendants per match attended the event (Bloomfield, 2010). This led to the renovation of five existing venues and building of five new stadia. The infrastructure and public transport networks were developed. It also gave South Africa to market itself as a tourist destination. The match period saw South African hotels fully booked and construction of new housing units though some slum dwellers complained of evictions for construction (SRSA, 2010). This translates positively to the South African Economy. However, majority of the visitors were locals with only 309,000 being foreign fans compared to millions expected in other such major sporting events.

3.1.3 Daegu Korea 2011

Representation stood at 204 nationalities and 1848 participating athletes. Kim Hyo-sun argues that Korea efforts focus on ensuring that effective service delivery from security to accommodation during the course of the event remained the government's priority. The rich culture of the Korean prompted a high turnout of visitors set at 2 million (Arirang. co.ke, 2010). Korea has a soft spot to the western tourists including Europe and the Americas because of its perceived liberal ideologies. As mentioned in the hegemony of political ideologies, hosting large event is a statement of intent towards a globalizing policy, since sports eligibility is not based on such external barriers (Fleming et al. 1995).

3.1.4 London Olympics 2012

Took place between 25 July and 12 August 2012 with athletes from 204 National Olympic Committees numbering to over 10,000 athletes. These athletics led to the development of a 490-acre Olympic Park at Stratford, East London though they also made use of existing stadia in London. These renovations included infrastructure and venues. The event venues were divided into the Central Zone, the Olympic Zone, and the River Zone. It also saw the completion of other venues such as the Portland athletes' village on 2011 September. Transport was also improved foe example introduction of a new high-speed rail service. A £25 million cable car across River Thames to link venues was built (Factsheet, 2012). Ten separate rail lines with a capacity per hour of

240,000 passengers served the Olympic park. According to Huto (2014), the Olympic history builds the sporting culture within the globalized world. Apart from the notable additions to the existing infrastructure, most of the existing infrastructures have a long time usage. Save for the events in South Africa where the hosts outnumbered the visitors by a big margin, most of the events notably, this event had balanced foreign visitors to locals' ratio.

3.1.5 IAAF sports in Moscow 2013

These athletics competition were held from 10-18 August 2013 that had 1974 athletes emanating from 206 countries with over 250000 evening spectators. The events took place in Luzhniki Stadium that has a capacity of 78,360 spectators. This was a precursor to the Sochi event and features nationals from 38 different countries awarded medals. Unlike Sochi, the event is just one of the over 100 international sporting events hosted in Russia and notably Moscow.

Chapter IV. Results

Sport tourism brings about outcomes subdivided into cultural, publicity and revenues.

4.1 Cultural products

Host countries for sporting activities have an excellent time in selling their cultural heritage. Sport tourist makes time to visit the attraction of the host countries during the periods competitions are not taking place (Robinson & Ramshaw 2013). However, the result is not always positive, as there have been claims of increased prostitution during such events. Some imply that the tourists bring with them destructive cultures and practices. This, however, does not lower the merits from the tourists as they outdo the demerits.

4.2 Publicity

According to Jake Coyle of the Associated Press, emerging platforms of digital media, sporting events get more online coverage than any major sporting event yet. For example, FIFA, estimates for the watching of the 2010 World cup were about 700 million. FIFA seeks its publicity through introduction of computer games as a way of marketing themselves. Other companies also boost publicity by sponsoring events for example canon in Moscow 2013 (Gurgaon, 2013).

4.3 Collected revenues

The 2010 South Africa world cup made £2.24 billion for FIFA. Sepp Blatter the FIFA president declared the world cup "a huge financial success for all, Africa and FIFA." On the other hand, Sochi was expected to use \$50 billion a figure experts feared would not be recovered (Koba, 2013). When these figures are analyzed, it is clear that even if the events do not meet the projected estimates in revenue, future events bring in revenue as minimal renovation are needed. In the end, the merits are higher for host countries. For example, some countries have hosted games more than once thus do not make many changes to their facilities, unlike a new host. Such host gets more revenue than first timers do and much leveraging on such mega events (Golubchikov & Slepukhina, 2014).

Chapter V. Summary

Tourism is a good opportunity to market one's country. Sport tourism can be considered the new way of gaining from visitors. It is true in consideration to the dwindling forest cover and deteriorating natural sceneries. Excessive exploitation gives sports a chance to boost revenue for host countries. It is also providing opportunities for countries to improve their amenities in preparation for visitors. In turn, an alternative revenue source should be embraced as much of the natural animals are on the verge of extinction from human activities. Russia is on the right path towards inspiring future sporting and tourism avenues. Through its efforts in Sochi, events and grounds will be receiving a good share of both international and local tourists in the future.

References

- 1. Alegi, P. (2013). Africa's World Cup: critical reflections on play, patriotism, spectatorship, and space. Ann Arbor: University of Michigan Press.
- 2. Andrews, K. (2011). FIFA World Cup 2010 in South Africa short- and long-term impacts on tourism. Hamburg: Bachelor: Master Pub.
- 3. Arirang.co.kr, (2010). Daegu in Preparation for ,2011 Visit Daegu Year'. Retrieved 05 June 2014 http://www.arirang.co.kr/News/News_View.asp?nseq=109865&category=2
- 4. Arnold, R. (2014). Russia's Olympic challenge: the 2014 winter games in Sochi.
- 5. Asgari, B & Khorshidi, R., (2013). The effect of hosting on performance of host countries in summer and winter Olympic Games, European Journal of Sports and Exercise Science, 2(4),1-6.
- 6. Barbados Olympic Association Inc. (2014). "Winter games: Sochi 2014." Retrieved from, http://www.olympic.org.bb/?page_id=844, on 3 June 2014.
- 7. Barabanova, V. B. (2013). Sochi–The Winner In The Battle For The Olympic Games 2014. International Journal Of Experimental Education, 6: pp. 48-50.
- 8. Bloomfield, S. (2010). Africa united: soccer, passion, politics, and the first World Cup in Africa. New York: Harper Perennial.
- 9. Factsheet, (2012). London 2012 Facts & Figures. Retrieved 05 June 2014 http://www.olympic.org/Documents/Reference_documents_Factsheets/London_2012_Facts_and_Figures-eng.pdf
- 10. Fleming, S., Talbot, M., & Tomlinson, A. (1995). Policy and politics in sport, physical education and leisure. London: Leisure Studies Association.
- 11. Furrer, P. (2002). Sustainable Olympic Games. Bollettino della Società Geografica Italiana, (4). 1-31.
- 12. Fussey, P., Coaffee, J., & Armstrong, G. (2011). Securing and sustaining the Olympic city reconfiguring London for 2012 and beyond. Farnham, Surrey, England: Ashgate.
- 13. Fyall, A., & Shipway, R. (2012). International sports events: impacts, experience and identities. London: Routledge.
- 14. Gibson, H. (2006). Sport Tourism: Concepts and Theories. An Introduction, Sport in Society, (8), 2, 133–14.
- 15. Girginov, V. (2012). The London 2012 Olympics. London: Routledge.
- 16. Golubchikov, O. & Slepukhina, I. (2014). Russia–Showcasing a 'Re-Emerging'State? Leveraging Legacies from Sports Mega-Events: Concepts and Cases, 166.
- 17. Gordon, K. O. (2013). Emotion and memory in nostalgia sport tourism: examining the attraction to postmodern ballparks through an interdisciplinary lens, Journal of Sport & Tourism, 18(3), 217-239,

- 18. Government Communication and Information System (2009). Quick facts: government preparations: 2010 FIFA World Cup South Africa TM. Pretoria: GCIS
- 19. Gurgaon. (29th July 2013). Canon, as Official IAAF Partner, to Support IAAF World Championships Moscow 2013 Through Various Activities. Edge Canon. Retrieved 05 June 2014 http://edge.canon.co.in/newsdetails.aspx?id=28.
- 20. Hinch, T., & Higham, J. E. (2004). Sport tourism development. Clevedon [England: Channel Veiw Publications.
- 21. Hunter, N. (2012). The 2012 London Olympics. Chicago, Ill.: Heinemann Library.
- 22. Hunter, N. (2012). The London Olympics 2012. London: Raintree.
- 23. Knott, B., & Fyall, A. (2011). South Africa 2010 Leveraging Nation Brand Benefits from the FIFA World Cup. Woodeaton: Goodfellow Publishers.
- 24. Koba, M. (2013). Olympics: Going for the gold, spending in the red. CNBC Sports Business. Retrieved 05 June 2014 http://www.cnbc.com/id/101163701.
- 25. Kubo, H. (2014). The social and economic impact of hosting the Olympic Games A guide to online resources. College & Research Libraries News, 75(1), 24-27.
- 26. Lee, M., Warner, A., & Bond, D. (2006). The race for the 2012 Olympics: the inside story of how London won the bid. London: Virgin Books.
- 27. Levy, B., & Berger, P. D. (2013). On the Financial Advantage of Hosting the Olympics. International Journal of Humanities and Social Science, 3(1), 11-20.
- 28. Mansfield, L. (2007). Involved-Detachment: A Balance of Passion and Reason in Feminisms and Gender-related Research in Sport. Tourism and Sports Tourism, Journal of Sport & Tourism, 12(2), 115-141.
- 29. Mehrotra A. (2012). To host or not to host? A comparison study on the long-run impact of the Olympic Games. Michigan Journal of Business, 4(2), 61-92.
- 30. Philipov, P. (2014). Sochi 2014 travel guide: making the most of your visit to Sochi and the Olympic Games.
- 31. PWC.ru (2014). Sochi 2014. Pwc.ru. Retrieved 05 June 2014 http://www.pwc.ru/ en/sochi2014.
- 32. Ritchie, B. W., & Adair, D. (2004). Sport tourism interrelationships, impacts and issues. Clevedon, England: Channel View Publications.
- 33. Rose, A. K., & Spiegel, M. M. (2011). The Olympic effect. The Economic Journal, 121(553), 652-677.
- 34. Smith, B. & Weed, W. (2007). The Potential of Narrative Research in Sports Tourism, Journal of Sport & Tourism, 12(3-4), 249-269.
- 35. States News Service (21 Feb 2014). Sochi 2014's Mountain Venues to Provide Sport and Tourism Legacies.
- 36. Sport & Recreation South Africa (SRSA), (2010). FIFA World Cup Country Report 2010 FIFA World Cup Country Report. Retrieved 05 June 2014 http://www.srsa.gov. za/MediaLib/Home/DocumentLibrary/SRSACountryReport2013-withcover.pdf.

- 37. Sports tourism in Latin America: products offered by European tour operators.. (2004). Madrid: World Tourism Organization.
- 38. USSA Foundation (n. d). "About Sochi." Retrieved from, http://ussa.org/foundation/about-sochi.on 3 June 2014.
- 39. Weed, M. (2005). Sports Tourism Theory and Method/Concepts, Issues and Epistemologies, European Sport Management Quarterly, 5, (3), 229-242.
- 40. Weed, M. (2008). Olympic tourism. Oxford: Butterworth-Heinemann.
- 41. Weed, M., & Bull, C. (2012). Sports Tourism 2e (2nd ed.). Hoboken: Taylor & Francis.
- 42. Wilson, G. D., & Wet, N. H. (1992). Sport, recreation and tourism in South Africa: preference and participation patterns. Pretoria: University of Pretoria.
- 43. World Tourism Organization (2004). Sports tourism in Latin America: products offered by European tour operators. Madrid: WTO.
- 44. Yunoshev, S. V. (2011). Sochi 2014: Gateway To The Future? Youth and Science: Collection of VII All-Russian scientific and technical conference of students and young scientists dedicated to the 50th anniversary of the first manned space flight [electronic resource]. -Krasnoyarsk Siberian Federal University. Mode of access: http://conf.sfu- kras.ru/sites/mn2011/section04.html, free.

Europäische Akademie der Naturwissenschaften Gegründet 2002

30161 Hannover Husarenstr. 20

E-mail: vladimirt2007@googlemail.com

Vorstand und Beirat

Vorstand:

- 1. Vorsitzender Prof. Dr. V. Tyminskiy
- 2. Vorsitzender Prof. Dr. A. Gorbunov
- 3. Vorsitzender Prof. Dr. chem. R. Melik-Ohanjanian

Beirat

Prof. Dr. V. Tyminskiy

Prof. Dr. med. K Matkovski

Prof. Dr. B Rimantas



Olesya P. Fesenko
Associate Professor for Economics and
Management.

She graduated from Sochi State University for Tourism and Recreation, Economics and Management Course in 2008.

In 2010 she defended her thesis for the candidate of sciences degree (Economics).

In 2011 published her book «The development of the tourist complex as a regional economy subsystem.»

Since 2008 she has been working at the Economics and Management Department, Sochi State University.

Currently studying at the Russian International Olympic University, «Master of Sports Administration» program.

Is co-author of 9 encyclopedic dictionaries, textbooks, has scientific publications.

Research interests: economics of social service industries, tourism and sports economics, regional economics, sports management and marketing, sustainable development.

Email: Olesenka2002@mail.ru